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1                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Hi, I would like to

2 call the meeting of the Hudson County Planning Board

3 to order.  Counsel, has this meeting been properly

4 noticed?

5                MR, CURLEY:  Yes.  The meeting has

6 been noticed in accordance with the Open Public

7 Meetings Act.  The meeting was advertised in the

8 Jersey Journal and Star Ledger.  The notice of

9 meeting was also posted on the Freeholders' bulletin

10 board and with the County Clerk.

11                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  We'll take a roll

12 call, please.

13                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Arencibia.

14                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Here.

15                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Bettinger,

16 absent.  Commissioner Choffo.

17                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Here.

18                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner

19 DiDomenico, absent.  Commissioner Glembocki, absent.

20 Commissioner Gomez.

21                COMMISSIONER GOMEZ:  Present.

22                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Holloway.

23                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Here.

24                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

25                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Here.

Page 2

Veritext/NJ Reporting Company
800-227-8440 973-410-4040



1                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Ng,

2 absent.  Commissioner Peralta.

3                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Here.

4                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Romano,

5 absent.  Chairman Cryan.

6                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Present.

7                MS. FERRARA:  Mr. Chairman, we have a

8 quorum.

9                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Stand and salute the

10 flag.

11                (Flag Salute.)

12                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Have the

13 Commissioners had the chance to take a look at the

14 April 16, 2014 meeting minutes?  Any questions?

15                MS. FERRARA:  On a motion made by

16 Commissioner Choffo.  Second by Commissioner

17 Holloway.

18           Commissioner Arencibia.

19                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

20                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

21                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Aye.

22                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Gomez.

23                COMMISSIONER GOMEZ:  Aye.

24                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Holloway.

25                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Aye.
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1                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

2                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Abstain.

3                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

4                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Abstain.

5                MS. FERRARA:  Chairman Cryan.

6                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Yes.

7                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

8 Mr. Chairman, the next item on the agenda is

9 Memorialization of Resolutions considered at the

10 previous meeting.  Starting with application

11 2014-015-SP; Applicant, Township of North Bergen;

12 located at 2101-2107 Kennedy Boulevard; Block 43,

13 Lot 48, in North Bergen.

14           On a motion made by Commissioner Gomez,

15 second by Commissioner Holloway.

16           Commissioner Arencibia.

17                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

18                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Bettinger,

19 not present.  Commissioner Choffo.

20                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Aye.

21                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner

22 DiDomenico, not present.  Commissioner Gomez.

23                COMMISSIONER GOMEZ:  Yes.

24                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Romano,

25 not present.  Chairman Cryan.
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1                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

2                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

3 The next item on the agenda is Site Plans,

4 Subdivisions and other matters scheduled for public

5 hearing.  The first application is 2014-009-SP;

6 Applicant, 133 Madison Street, LLC, 3505-3511 JFK

7 Boulevard, Block 260.0, Lots 15-21, in Union City.

8                MS. PEREIRAS:  Good evening,

9 Mr. Chairman, Counsel, Members of the Board.  My

10 name Lisa Pereiras, on behalf of 133 Madison Street,

11 LLC.  Our application is to construct a Taco Bell

12 restaurant with a drive-through at 3505-3511 Kennedy

13 Boulevard on County Road 501.  We have one expert to

14 testify before the Board this evening.  That's our

15 engineer, Mr. Keith Cahill.

16                MR. CAHILL:  Good evening.  Keith

17 Cahill, C-a-h-i-l-l, of the firm, Bohler

18 Engineering.  I'm a professional engineer, licensed

19 in the state of New Jersey.

20               (The witness is sworn.)

21                MR, CURLEY:  Can you just spell your

22 last name for the record.

23                MR. CAHILL:  C-a-h-i-l-l.  We're from

24 Bohler Engineering, and the professional engineer

25 overseeing the design of the site plans for this
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1 project.  Essentially, we're taking an existing

2 property on the northwest corner of JFK Boulevard

3 and 36th Street, that is approximately 98-percent

4 impervious surface, it was used for a prior

5 automobile sales lot, we're redeveloping it for a

6 2111-square-foot Taco Bell restaurant with 54 seats

7 in it.

8           We are as part of the redevelopment, we

9 are adding 17 parking stalls.  We're having a right

10 in/right out driveway off of JFK Boulevard, and a

11 right in/right out exit driveway on 36th Street.  As

12 part of this redevelopment, the lot itself is

13 approximately on 0.4 acres, and we are decreasing

14 the impervious coverage by 0.1 acres, about 4,000

15 square feet, as part of this, and we have obtained

16 our approval from the North Hudson Sewerage

17 Authority for our connections for storm water.  This

18 area is a combined sewer.  They have approved our

19 design for the project.

20           This site does have a drive-through lane

21 that will be utilized for the restaurant and a trash

22 corral facility for our waste.  As part of the

23 review and process submittal with the County

24 engineer, they have asked for some additional shade

25 trees, which we have added.  We've added a bike rack

Page 6

Veritext/NJ Reporting Company
800-227-8440 973-410-4040



1 as well, as part of their request and modified the

2 exit lane coming out of the drive-through so it

3 forces everyone to make a left out to the side

4 street rather than directly out to JFK Boulevard.

5 We also added some bollards in a sense along JFK to

6 prevent any left turns into the facility as

7 requested by the County engineer's office.

8                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Let the record

9 reflect Commissioner DiDomenico came in.

10                MR. CAHILL:  That is, in essence, the

11 proposal for this evening.  We have an application

12 within the municipality as well.  The application is

13 still pending at this time.

14                MR, CURLEY:  Mr. Cahill, can you mark

15 the rendering as A-1?

16                MR. CAHILL:  The rendering is A-1.

17 It is Sheet 3 of the site plan package colorized

18 just for intents and purposes for ease of

19 description.  As I mentioned it, on-site parking,

20 there's 17 parking stalls for the facility as well.

21 The operational aspect of this, the anticipated

22 hours of operation are from 7 a.m.  The inside of

23 the store will be closing at midnight, and the

24 drive-through will continue to operate until

25 two a.m.
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1                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Mr. Chairman,

2 is this the old dealership?

3                MR. CAHILL:  Yes.

4                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Did you get

5 your approval from Union City?

6                MR. CAHILL:  No, the application is

7 still pending at this time.

8                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  When do you

9 expect to go before them?

10                MS. PEREIRAS:  July 10th.

11                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Mr. Chairman,

12 the exit from the restaurant, is that going out to

13 Kennedy Boulevard or the side street?

14                MR. CAHILL:  There are two exits for

15 our facility.  JFK is right in/right out driveway

16 only, so if you're leaving the parking lot, you can

17 make a right out onto JFK.  If you the utilize the

18 drive-through, then you're forced to go out to the

19 side street, 36th Street, and make a right out of

20 there.  36th Street is a one-way street towards JFK.

21 The access to 36th is right in/right out only as

22 well.

23                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  The reason

24 I'm asking, I'm familiar with that area.  I think

25 that street is congested a lot, heavy traffic in the
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1 morning.

2                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  So I think the

3 drainage you said you obtained approval from North

4 Bergen?

5                MR. CAHILL:  Yes.

6                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Can just

7 briefly explain the drainage?  Are you required to

8 provide any chamber retaining system?

9                MR. CAHILL:  No.  In essence, because

10 we're reducing the impervious coverage by in excess

11 of 25 percent, we're creating natural reductions to

12 the existing storm system.  In essence, not only are

13 we reducing the rates of runoff, but because it's

14 impervious, we're reducing the volume that would be

15 leaving the site as well.  We have shown that

16 connection into their system, and again, they have

17 offered their approval for the design.

18                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  And the

19 connection is where?

20                MR. CAHILL:  On 36th Street, correct.

21                MR. KLEIN:  Mr. Chairman, we

22 essentially gave out a review letter, and we went

23 through the process coordinating that with the

24 applicant.  They have basically addressed all of our

25 comments.  I looked in the package.  I'm not sure if
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1 the packets have our May 24th letter in there.  You

2 guys may have it, but our May 21st basically

3 identified the things they addressed.

4           I think one thing that I wanted the

5 engineer to confirm, which was the existing ADA ramp

6 at the corner by the traffic signal along the

7 property frontage, if it was currently in compliance

8 with the regulations, or if that's something coming

9 out of during construction.  Have you had a chance

10 to look into that?

11                MR. CAHILL:  Yeah, the slopes will

12 have to b evaluated during construction, but in

13 terms of the physical geometry, it did appear.  So

14 if that did not meet true slope because the survey

15 needed some additional spot checks to confirm, which

16 will be done during construction.  We would need to

17 that have to get our CO.

18                MR. KLEIN:  Okay.  It's something

19 that during construction you will assess, an

20 inspector will come out at that time and measure,

21 and if it's noncompliant, you'll be installing a new

22 ramp at that point.

23                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  I have a

24 question or two question.  The location of the

25 drive-through, I noticed there's an apartment
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1 building, the first floor with a driveway next to

2 it, and the lighting, is that going to disturb

3 anybody on the first or second floor of that

4 apartment building?

5                MR. CAHILL:  No.  All of the lighting

6 is downward lighting, so it shouldn't have any

7 glare.

8                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  What about

9 the light within drive-through facing the building?

10                MR. CAHILL:  The drive-through

11 window, referring to A-1, is along the time same

12 side of the apartment building, however, the

13 apartments start on the second floor so that won't

14 create any issue to the lower level.

15                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  I noticed a

16 couple things about the site further up.  People are

17 complaining that they could hear the drive-through

18 people speaking on the microphone in the summer with

19 the windows open.

20                MR. CAHILL:  Again, in today's day

21 and age, they actually have better technology for

22 the drive-through speaker box.  In essence, it

23 monitors the ambient noise around it, and it will

24 adjust for nighttime versus daytime.  If there is a

25 lot of traffic on JFK, it may be a little bit louder
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1 for the daytime hours or evening traffic, but it

2 remains in compliance with State regulations.

3                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Are you

4 putting any type of fence along your border?

5                MR. CAHILL:  We have a fence that is

6 around the perimeter on our side.  There is one

7 there today.  We are --

8                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Okay.  That's

9 all I want.  Thank you.

10                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  You're asking for a

11 parking variance from the Union City Board of

12 Adjustment?

13                MR. CAHILL:  Yes, for one parking

14 space.

15                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  How about green

16 techniques, shade trees?

17                MR. CAHILL:  As part of this review

18 process, we've added some additional shade trees.

19 We are one short.  We need to contribute to the fund

20 for the one tree.  If you notice along our frontage,

21 we have a relatively small frontage area.  We've

22 added them where we can.  We actually have the

23 number of trees, but it's set back a little bit so

24 it didn't qualify as a street tree, but we are

25 contributing to add it.  It's just relative to the
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1 amount of space we have.  It would be tough to put

2 another one in there.  In regards to another green

3 technique, we have added the bike rack as requested

4 as well.

5                MS. FERRARA:  Mr. Chairman, in

6 addition what the applicant's engineer said, they

7 have also done native landscaping, decreased

8 impervious coverage and added bike racks.  They were

9 required four.  They are planting three.

10                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Mr. Chairman,

11 do we take control, do we put the trees in, or do

12 they put the trees in?

13                MS. FERRARA:  We have required

14 projections.

15                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  I just don't

16 want huge trees that start hitting telephone wires,

17 and no one maintains them.  Then when a storm comes,

18 the trees hit buildings.

19                MS. FERRARA:  Off the top of my head,

20 I don't remember the exact tree species, but we make

21 sure they're not top-heavy trees that doesn't affect

22 them.

23                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Who is

24 responsible to maintain them on Kennedy Boulevard,

25 to maintain it, to maintain the tree, who is
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1 responsible?

2                MS. FERRARA:  The County.

3                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Thank you.  Mr.

4 Chairman, that area that is coming out and you get

5 to the stop sign, it's very close to pedestrians on

6 Kennedy Boulevard, so how will the vehicle adjust to

7 that?

8                MR. BALLOU:  That was part of the

9 comment from your professionals, and that's why the

10 angle exiting the drive-through now forces all

11 vehicles go to the side street and not make that

12 turn to JFK.  It also provides additional

13 line-of-sight visibility for the pedestrians that

14 will be using the sidewalk as well.

15                COMMISSIONER GOMEZ:  Also, I saw some

16 signs.

17                MR. CAHILL:  Yes, not to make the

18 right coming out of the drive-through.  It would be

19 forced to go left.

20                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  So did you have

21 permits for this sight?

22                MR. CAHILL:  Yes, there's proper

23 line-of-sight for exiting to our drivers.

24                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  I'm talking

25 about the environmental.  It used to be a building
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1 for automotive, right?

2                MR. CAHILL:  Yes.

3                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  So doesn't that

4 have an environmental issue?

5                MR. CAHILL:  I believe there was a

6 test done in terms of that.  Any type of

7 remediation, if there was any soil, it would have to

8 be removed in accordance with the DEP regulations.

9                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  And as well as

10 the testimony that you're one parking short?

11                MR. CAHILL:  I'm sorry.

12                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  According to

13 your testimony, you are one parking short?

14                MR. CAHILL:  Yes.

15                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Is there enough

16 space in that area that you could accommodate that

17 parking space?

18                MR. CAHILL:  The original application

19 had the exact number.  It had 18.  However, the

20 benefit of modifying the angle of the exit driveway

21 out of the drive-through lane forced the elimination

22 of one parking spot.  From an operational

23 standpoint, the location of this facility and the

24 utilization of this restaurant, we feel there will

25 be a higher percentage of drive-through traffic,
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1 which decreases the demand for the on-site parking.

2 Operationally, my client in our evaluation of this,

3 we don't have a concern with one less parking stall.

4                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  How many

5 employees do you have?

6                MR. CAHILL:  Depends on the shift and

7 maximum time.  We are anticipating approximately

8 seven, but again, with mass transportation there,

9 the majority of our employees wouldn't be utilizing

10 the lot itself anyway.

11                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Mr. Chairman.

12 Madam Secretary, I have a question.  Who's

13 responsible for putting a sign for a right turn on

14 36th Street, which is a one-way street?

15                MS. FERRARA:  The applicant has the

16 responsibility.

17                MR. CAHILL:  Yes.  We will have

18 proper directional signage on-site.

19                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Okay.  Thank

20 you.

21                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Anymore questions?

22                MR. TRIDENTE:  Mr. Chairman, I would

23 like to remind the applicant that when you apply for

24 your certificate of occupancy, we are required to

25 have an as-built set of plans provided to the
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1 Planning Board and a final inspection conducted

2 before you get the CO.

3                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Is there a motion?

4                MS. FERRARA:  On a motion made by

5 Commissioner Gomez.  Second by Commissioner

6 Holloway.

7           Commissioner Arencibia.

8                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.  I just

9 want to remind the applicant to obtain permits

10 before the construction starts to the right-of-way.

11                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

12                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  I vote aye.

13 You said you still need approval from Union City.

14 When you do get approve, forward a copy to our

15 office.

16                MS. PEREIRAS:  Of course.

17                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Gomez.

18                COMMISSIONER GOMEZ:  Aye.

19                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Holloway.

20                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Aye.

21                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

22                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

23                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

24                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Yes.

25                MS. FERRARA:  Chairman Cryan.
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1                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Yes.

2                MS. FERRARA:  I apologize.

3 Commissioner DiDomenico.  I'm sorry.

4                FREEHOLDER DiDOMENICO:  Aye.

5                MS. PEREIRAS:  Thank you.  The motion

6 passes.  The next item on the agenda is Application

7 2014-019-SP; Town of West New York; located at JFK

8 Boulevard East, Block 168, Lots 1 & 2, West New

9 York.

10           Mr. Chairman, in your packet, there is a

11 letter from the attorney for West New York

12 requesting that their application be dismissed

13 without prejudice.  It will not be heard.  We need a

14 motion to dismiss.

15                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Just a point of

16 order, is this something that I would have to

17 abstain on?

18                MR, CURLEY:  If you actually have an

19 issue with West York you should probably abstain.

20                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  I would have to

21 abstain.

22                MS. FERRARA:  On a motion made by

23 Commission Choffo.  Second by Commissioner Peralta.

24           Commissioner Arencibia.

25                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

Page 18

Veritext/NJ Reporting Company
800-227-8440 973-410-4040



1                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

2                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Aye.

3                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner

4 DiDomenico.

5                FREEHOLDER DiDOMENICO:  Aye.

6                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Gomez.

7                COMMISSIONER GOMEZ:  Aye.

8                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Holloway.

9                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Aye.

10                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

11                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

12                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

13                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

14                MS. FERRARA:  Chairman Cryan.

15                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Abstained.

16                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

17 The next item on the agenda is 2014-022-SP, DVL

18 Kearny Holdings, LLC; located at 190 Passaic Avenue;

19 Block 15, Lots 7.01, 7.02, 8.01, in Kearny.

20                MR. CHO:  Thank you.  Mr. Chairman,

21 Commissioners, my name is Henry Cho.  I'm the

22 attorney for the applicant from the law firm of Bill

23 Wallach.  As the introduction -- per the

24 introduction, this is a redevelopment of an existing

25 commercial site in Kearny on Passaic Avenue.  It's a
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1 three-phase project.  We're here tonight just on

2 phase one.

3           We have obtained an amended preliminary

4 and final site plan approval from the Kearny

5 Planning Board.  That was in December of 2013.  We

6 later went back in May of this year and obtained a

7 minor subdivision in consolidation of a piece within

8 the site.

9           We have received review memos from

10 Remington Vernick, as well as the Planning Division,

11 and I believe we've addressed most of those comments

12 already.  We do have our professionals here to tie

13 up any lose ends that might come up tonight.  We

14 anticipate just having our civil site engineer, Mr.

15 Ballou, to testify as to the plans, but we do also

16 have our traffic engineer and architect here in case

17 anything comes up in their field.  With that, I

18 would like turn it over to Mr. Ballou.

19               (The witness is sworn.)

20                MR, CURLEY:  Can you spell your last

21 name for the record?

22                MR. BALLOU:  B-a-l-l-o-u.  I am

23 currently a licensed professional engineer in the

24 state of New Jersey, and my specialty over my last

25 15 years has been redevelopment projects.  It goes
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1 as very well with this one.

2                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  You have testified

3 here before, correct?

4                MR. BALLOU:  I have, numerous

5 applications.  The first thing that I have up here

6 is an existing conditions exhibit to show you what

7 the site looks like today.  Passaic Avenue is at the

8 bottom of the sheet, and Bergen Avenue is on the

9 left side, and then to right it's Marshall Street as

10 well.  So identification areas, this is where K-Mart

11 is currently.  There also a Modell's building to the

12 left of that.  Then there's a ShopRite building to

13 right of our project.

14           In between this large 10-acre parcel known

15 as Todd Park, a former industrial facility, what our

16 proposal is, is to fully remove these nine buildings

17 and all of this impervious pavement and reconstruct

18 a commercial building.

19                MR, CURLEY:  Would you please mark

20 first exhibit as A-1.

21                MR. BALLOU:  I have an overall site

22 plan.  Should I mark that as A-2?

23                MR, CURLEY:  Yes, please.

24                MR. BALLOU:  We're replacing the Todd

25 Park site with three retail buildings.  Retail
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1 Building 3, this about 17,000 square feet.  We think

2 that will have smaller-type tenants in there, about

3 five tenants.  Building 1 to the right is a building

4 35,000 square feet.  We're thinking about one or two

5 tenants, or two to three tenants for that building.

6 Over here is Building 2.  It's about 88,000 square

7 feet.  That's been leased out by BJ's Wholesale.  We

8 have a tenant for that building.

9           As part of the project to service those

10 three uses, we have a parking area, 552 spaces.

11 There's about four spaces per thousand square feet

12 of use.  The site, actually from an access

13 standpoint, the existing is set up very well.  We

14 already have a signalized intersection for our

15 northern entrance, and even further north than that,

16 there's also another signalized entrance that allows

17 access to the entire facility.

18           One of the upgrades that we talked about

19 during the technical review committee meeting is

20 that this would be the north driveway, we've been

21 asked that we upgrade the traffic signals, replace

22 them with a traffic signal from the eight-inch to

23 twelve-inch newer models, update that intersection

24 with the ADA push button, and also update the

25 associated handicapped ramps to make this a fully
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1 modern-type signal, and the applicant is agreeing to

2 do that at their cost.

3           One thing about the site, it does have a

4 large elevation change.  The back portion of the

5 site is around Elevation 34.  Passaic Avenue is

6 about 13.  So there's about 20 feet of grade change

7 from the back of our site to the front of our site.

8 So what we have to do is actually tear into site and

9 lower it in the back, and then construct a retaining

10 wall along the front of the property, on the

11 client's property, not within the right-of-way but

12 back.  We have to deal with that.

13           One thing that's good about the high

14 elevation is that our project development is outside

15 of the revised FEMA hundred-year flood elevation.

16 That's about Elevation 10.  Passaic Avenue's area is

17 around Elevation 13.  Our building is as high as 26

18 for finished floor elevation.  We are completely

19 outside and elevated above any flood issues.

20           As was referred to in the previous

21 exhibit, there is basically zero grass in the former

22 industrial use.  We're going to change that and

23 actually add planted islands, an area in the back

24 that is green.  Along the frontage we have a planter

25 strip with trees and things of that nature in there.
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1 So our stormwater management plan was basically to

2 redevelop the site, adding some open space that will

3 decrease the amount of volume of stormwater as well

4 as increase the water quality.

5           We have approximately 800 linear feet of

6 frontage along Passaic Avenue.  The whole industrial

7 site had a lot of driveway openings and things of

8 that nature, so we're going to clean that up.  We're

9 going to go through and replace all of the curbing,

10 create a five-foot-wide planing strip that will

11 actually have street trees plants approximately

12 every 30 feet along the frontage.  We've actually

13 added a second row of trees in the planting bed on

14 the private property.  So you will actually get a

15 double row of trees lining the entire frontage.

16           The sidewalk, we're going to do an

17 eight-foot-wide sidewalk made out of concrete that

18 will have saw-cut joints giving it a nice decorative

19 character, four-by-five blocks.  At the intersection

20 we are upgrading the materials.  We're going to have

21 brick pavers in those areas to give a little bit of

22 an accent in the entrance of the development.  One

23 thing that I wanted to mention, we have added bike

24 racks as well to our site.  We did add bike racks

25 per the request of Planning.  We had no problem with
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1 that.

2           With regards to the subdivision aspect,

3 basically this area here has two lots.  Lot 8.01 had

4 an irregular lot that sort of protruded into the

5 space.  What the subdivision we're asking for will

6 do is, we'll consolidate those two lots, 7.01 and

7 7.02, and also clean up the lot line on 8.01, so we

8 make sure we don't have parking on the adjacent

9 property.  It's more a consolidation and lot line

10 adjustment than actually creating multiple lots.

11           Part of this elevation will also address,

12 we sort of have an irregular right-of-way line along

13 Passaic Avenue, so when I looked at it on my plans,

14 it really replaced a lot of the County sidewalk

15 actually on the private property.  So through the

16 discussions we had at the technical review committee

17 meeting, we discussed dedicating a sliver of

18 property so the sidewalk would be fully within the

19 County right-of-way and under their jurisdiction.

20 That's what I was asking about the subdivisions.

21           Those are the highlights of the project;

22 if you have any other questions.

23                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Mr. Chairman,

24 just for the record, you're saying that there's 500

25 spaces for vehicles for the whole site or just that?
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1                MR. BALLOU:  I should go through

2 that.  When we actually submitted, it's actually a

3 three-phase project that we got approval from the

4 Township of Kearny.  The actual first submission to

5 the County actually covered all three phases.  But

6 then we talked about sequencing and dedication and

7 improvements, we thought it would be much better to

8 only ask for the phase one approval.  If tenants

9 come on board for the three proposed restaurant

10 sites, we're going to come back in front of the

11 Board and ask for approval on a phase-by-phase basis

12 once we have a restaurant chosen because their

13 architectural plans can vary so much, it would be

14 logical to come back.

15           So our phase one site, that's just phase

16 one is 552 parking spaces to service those three

17 buildings.  Obviously, there is a lot of connection

18 so there can be cross-sharing of parking spaces.

19                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Phase one

20 will be you said Costco?

21                MR. BALLOU:   BJ's.

22                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  I'm concerned

23 about the lighting.  I think Secaucus, Sam's Club, I

24 notice at night when I'm there, the lighting is so

25 dim, that you know, a lot older people come there at
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1 night, I don't know why, but you can't even drive

2 your car.  What's the lighting for that?

3                MR. BALLOU:  Actually, the BJ's is

4 actually making us really light this very well

5 because delivery vehicles make drop-offs at night.

6 They're actually over one footcandle for those

7 areas.  This is actually going to be very well-lit,

8 and the good thing about the grade change, we

9 probably have 20-foot separation from our site.  The

10 people that actually live above us are still 30 or

11 40 feet even higher that than us, so we're not

12 worried about cross lighting to adjacent properties

13 since we're sort of in a depression.

14                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  One more,

15 that is a flood zone area, right?

16                MR. BALLOU:  The eastern side of

17 Passaic Avenue, that is in a flood area.  The flood

18 line meets the end at Passaic Avenue.  So we're on

19 the dry side of Passaic Avenue.

20                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  So that area

21 that you have, actually the building never flooded,

22 correct?

23                MR. BALLOU:  I can't -- I don't

24 believe -- I can't say.  I don't believe it did

25 because we're around Elevation 13.  The anticipated
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1 hundred-year flood even on the new maps is around

2 ten to eleven.  We're still quite a bit above that.

3                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Thank you.

4                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Can you go over

5 the egress into the property?

6                MR. BALLOU:  Most definitely.  The

7 site, right here at the K-Mart, this is a fully

8 signalized intersection, a four-way intersection

9 with dedicated turn lanes that exists today.  What

10 we're proposing to do is upgrade the signal

11 equipment, things of that nature, to make it operate

12 better.

13           We also have further to the south, we also

14 have another signalized intersection that also has

15 dedicated turn lanes in and out of the project.

16 That signal was fairly recently updated by the

17 County.  So you actually recently updated that

18 signal.  That's why there was a request to update

19 the one further to north that we agreed upon.

20 That's ingress and egress.  We also have an egress

21 in separation of our project and ShopRite.

22                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  What street

23 is that?

24                MR. BALLOU:  That's not a street.  It

25 would be a private driveway on the ShopRite here.
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1 This egress is actually, if you look at the way we

2 did this design, the use of that egress, that egress

3 was really done to allow delivery vehicles to go

4 around the site and come out the other side without

5 interfering with the actual patrons.

6                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Is that right

7 turn only?

8                MR. BALLOU:  I don't believe so.

9 There has been no request to have turning

10 restrictions on that driveway.

11                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Does that

12 conflict with the ShopRite also?

13                MR. BALLOU:  A lot of times delivery

14 vehicles come at off-peak times as well, so the

15 traffic conditions when the delivery is made won't

16 conflict with the heavily traveled times.

17                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Could you just

18 indicate where James Market would be?  There is a

19 current James Fish Market.

20                MR. BALLOU:  Yeah, that would be down

21 right here.

22                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Near Building

23 No. 3 on the rendering?

24                MR. BALLOU:  Yes.

25                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  That's not
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1 affecting that driveway right there?  Kearny has no

2 recommendation about right turn out of that private

3 road?

4                MR. BALLOU:  Right, they didn't

5 request any traffic restrictions on that driveway.

6                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  It's a County

7 road, Massiel?

8                MS. FERRARA:  Mr. Chairman, maybe Mr.

9 Cray can answer your question.

10                MR. CRAY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

11 To prohibit a left turn at that point would mean

12 that trucks go back through the rest of the site,

13 and we agreed with and Kearny's fine, that we really

14 want to separate truck traffic from the general

15 traffic.  If it had been a driveway designed for

16 significant traffic as the other driveways are, we

17 would have detailed reviews of those traffic

18 signals.  It would have been a different approach.

19           The traffic is lighter.  It is just

20 trucks.  They are familiar with the site.  It's not

21 as if it's only visitors.  I wouldn't say all of the

22 traffic, but much of the traffic would be off-peak

23 hours.  So that is a better design scenario than

24 forcing them into the rest of the site.

25                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  I don't have
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1 any other questions.

2                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  The existing

3 building will be the BJ's, it will be a completely

4 new, or will you be updating the existing building?

5                MR. BALLOU:  Right now, the site

6 consists of nine different former industrial

7 buildings, and they will be completely demolished,

8 and so the BJ's building we're proposing will be a

9 completely new structure.  There will be no reuse of

10 the existing structures that are on-site.

11                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Right now the

12 middle building where the K-Mart is existing?

13                MR. BALLOU:  Right, K-Mart is

14 existing.

15                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  So you're going

16 to keep that building as it is, you're not changing

17 anything on that?

18                MR. BALLOU:  That's correct.  During

19 this stage we're not changing anything on that

20 property.

21                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  What about on

22 the left-hand side?

23                MR. BALLOU:  That is the parking lot.

24 That will actually be upgraded at the same time that

25 the restaurants are done, and the site improvements
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1 and things we mentioned we're going to do in phase

2 one, we'll continue that same treatment all the way

3 down Passaic as tenants come on the site.  There is

4 also two restaurants proposed in that area.  Once

5 the restaurants' tenants have been selected, we will

6 also do improvements to that entire frontage as

7 well.  We'll update the infrastructure as tenants

8 come on board.

9                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  So both of the

10 restaurants being proposed, that will be a new

11 building?

12                MR. BALLOU:  It will be all new

13 buildings, correct.

14                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  So those two big

15 buildings are not going to be existing?

16                MR. BALLOU:  They're not.

17                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  You're not

18 changing anything to that big building?

19                MR. BALLOU:  Not my knowledge.  I

20 mean, right now those buildings exist today and they

21 have tenants.  In the future could they be modified?

22 Potentially.  Right now there is no change.

23                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  The phase one,

24 you have to something in the three buildings, will

25 they have sufficient parking, or are they going to
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1 have to use the next parking area?

2                MR. BALLOU:  Yes, we definitely

3 believe so.  We are providing 552 spaces, which is

4 about four spaces per thousand.  BJ's in their lease

5 agreement felt very comfortable with that number.

6 It's very close to the Kearny number as well.  So we

7 feel very comfortable with parking ratios.  There

8 are other shared parking opportunities as well.

9                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Mr. Cray, you feel

10 the same, right?

11                MR. CRAY:  Mr Chairman, if I could

12 speak with Mr. Ballou for the record in case I

13 missed it.  Can you state the total square footage

14 of phase one for reference, and also provide the

15 aggregate net amount of the development, if you

16 could provide those two numbers for the record?

17                MR. BALLOU:  The three buildings add

18 up to 139,788 square feet.  The overall development

19 was around 150,000 square feet, for the overall

20 development.

21                MR. CRAY:  In addition to that?

22                MR. BALLOU:  In addition to that, the

23 new construction.

24                MR. CRAY:  To confirm, is the

25 remaining number of the full development 300,608
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1 square feet?  It's right there in front of you.

2                MR. BALLOU:  Yes.  When the full site

3 is fully developed, with the new buildings and

4 including the existing buildings remaining, the

5 total development will 300,608 square feet

6 potentially.

7                MR. CRAY:  Back to the parking

8 question, the site does work better as one overall

9 site.  Phase two and three are not built yet.  In

10 the distance it would take a little more scrutiny.

11 I follow what they're doing.  They're trying to

12 increase green.  They've done that.  There is

13 aesthetic encouragement from the redevelopment plan.

14 Inside the site they've added some green areas,

15 which is nice as long as they can park.

16           Here, the phase two and three does exist,

17 they're just not seeking approval to do the changes

18 in phase two and three.  I think the shared parking

19 is a very good planning tool because phase one is

20 not on its own island.  It is a good combination of

21 having shared parking.  It is a pretty massive

22 parking field when you add it all together.

23                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  On phase one

24 you mentioned earlier that there's nine buildings.

25 I'm looking for them, and I'm only seeing five.
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1                MR. BALLOU:  What happened is a lot

2 of these buildings are sort of attached.  You have a

3 multiple six-story building next to a one-story

4 building.

5                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Thank you.

6                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  The traffic

7 signal improvements is in phase one?

8                MR. BALLOU:  That's correct.  It will

9 be completed in phase one.

10                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  The

11 intersection plan has bollards up.

12                MR. BALLOU:  We are proposing three

13 bollards.  They are decorative bollards to accent

14 the intersection.

15                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  That's to

16 protect pedestrians from the trucks?

17                MR. BALLOU:  No, it's aesthetic.  It

18 will protect pedestrians, but I think they're mostly

19 put there as aesthetic.

20                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  They're

21 decorative bollards, and if they get knocked down,

22 who is going to replaced the bollards?

23                MR. BALLOU:  Right now, we would

24 build them into the sidewalk, and our intention

25 would be to dedicate them to the County for
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1 maintenance purposes.  So the bollards could be

2 removed.

3                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  I have a

4 concern about the decorative bollards, unless we can

5 work something out.

6                MR. BALLOU:  Not really.  They're

7 aesthetic.  The landscape architect wanted to add a

8 layer at the intersection.  If they had to go

9 because the County didn't want them in their

10 right-of-way, we understand.

11                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  I was thinking

12 that we would not want to maintain them, unless we

13 had some kind of an agreement to maintain them.  So

14 I would say for the record, they shouldn't be there

15 if they're just there for decorative purposes, and

16 we don't have any agreement to maintain, they should

17 be removed.

18                MR. BALLOU:  Okay.  Yes, sir.

19                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Mr. Chairman,

20 you're providing a sidewalk on phase one of the

21 construction?

22                MR. BALLOU:  Correct.  Our first

23 phase is approximately 800 feet of sidewalk and

24 curbing.

25                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Including the
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1 new curbs as well?

2                MR. BALLOU:  Definitely new curbs,

3 definitely.  The curb that is out there now is a

4 combination of depressed curb, full curb.  It's

5 definitely in needed of replacement.

6                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Where is the

7 connection to the drainage?

8                MR. BALLOU:  Being in the

9 intersection that we're in, Passaic Avenue is the

10 subject of a combined sewer separation project,

11 where they actually constructed a brand new storm

12 sewer line on Passaic Avenue that goes to the south

13 like a thousand feet, and then it goes into the

14 Passaic River.  So we're able to tie in our drainage

15 directly into the drainage line, not the combined

16 sewer lines.  So our sewer line will go into the

17 Passaic River as it does today.

18                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  And that's a

19 thousand feet to the south.  Do you know the size?

20                MR. BALLOU:  I know it starts off at

21 24-inch, then I know it goes to 36-inch.  I'm not

22 sure what the ultimate size is, if it's 48 or

23 60-inch.

24                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  That's all the

25 questions I have.
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1                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Mr. Chairman,

2 one more question just for the record, with the

3 industrial complex, I'm sure you had the property

4 checked with the EPA.  It looks like an oil tank.

5                MR. BALLOU:  This site is subject to

6 a remediation cleanup as part of the demolition of

7 the buildings as well as addressing the

8 environmental.  There's been an LSRP involved with

9 the project, and portions of the project may be

10 capped and things of that nature.  Yes, it's an

11 industrial facility.  There is definitely

12 environmental that we need to address.

13                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Thank you.

14                MR. TRIDENTE:  I just want to remind

15 the applicant that we need an as-built site plan,

16 and you need to contact this office for a final

17 inspection.

18                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Mr. Cray.

19                MR. CRAY:  Mr. Chairman, I'll go over

20 my review letter, but before I forget with the

21 sidewalk, just for the Commissioner's consideration,

22 being that it's understood that the sidewalk is the

23 responsibility of the property owner, if as a

24 condition of approval you would consider a legal

25 document to the Board attorney's satisfaction that
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1 would state for the record that the decorative

2 bollards in the right-of-way are the property

3 owner's responsibility for maintenance just as the

4 sidewalk is.  If they don't do that, then the

5 bollards go away.  If they do that, I don't know if

6 that would be acceptable to the County, but it would

7 be some form of a document for maintenance

8 responsibility.  When you mentioned something could

9 be done, is that the type of vehicle that you were

10 speaking of?

11                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Yeah, I was

12 saying some type of a legal agreement for the

13 maintenance of the bollards.  I think they got rid

14 of them already.

15                MR. BALLOU:  No bollards.

16                MR. CRAY:  So my review started

17 earlier in the year.  This application was submitted

18 as one project.  They mentioned phases, but it was

19 applied for in one project.  We issued a review

20 letter January 2nd.  They have been since working

21 with Kearny, working out the details and working

22 things out with the different of property owners

23 involved.  So it was dismissed without prejudice.

24           So the review letter was generated June 3,

25 2014, which reflects the fact that they submitted a
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1 lot of documentation in the interim addressing a

2 majority of my prior review letter, and they still

3 submitted as one project.  It's kind of good in a

4 way because the traffic was included as one project.

5 There's three traffic signals considered, Bergen

6 Avenue to the north end, on to the left side, the

7 middle of the project is a Pathmark signal, and then

8 in between those two signals is something we

9 referred to, I think a bank will be developed at

10 some point on the other side of the street.

11           Our traffic analysis did require the

12 analysis of other signals beyond the scope of the

13 project as well to make sure there wasn't a

14 detrimental change in level of service.  They've

15 done that.  There was no decrease.  The progress is

16 on the site itself, and to make a long story short,

17 between the initial review and this review and the

18 most recent committee meeting, they've agreed to do

19 the operation to the middle signal, and that is a

20 review comment in my letter.

21           After the date of my letter, there is a

22 letter dated June 4, 2014, by the applicant's

23 traffic consultant, and I know that's in your

24 packet, and it's important that it be made part of

25 the record because on behalf of his client, there is
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1 an agreement about the work to be done to that

2 signal as well as some other things; for example,

3 sequence the timing of one of the signals as this

4 project is built out.  They wouldn't do it

5 immediately, but there is an understanding that the

6 design for that will be done by a consultant with

7 the review and approval of the County engineer so at

8 the appropriate time, the timing for the signal

9 modification could be done as well, because it was

10 the applicant's traffic consultant's position that

11 that signal worked fine with just some retiming.

12           So those are a combination of the June 3rd

13 letter and the traffic consultant's June 4th letter.

14 The applicant's site civil engineer issued a letter

15 June 6th, which clarifies their intend to change the

16 project's total approval and bring it down to just

17 phase one.  But even though the traffic signal

18 improvements that we're discussing are actually

19 within the frontage of phase two and three, they

20 realize the influence from BJ's opening up affects

21 that field as well, so they have agreed to do those

22 improvements as part of phase one.

23           The most significant thing they referred

24 to in the phases, there was a need for roadway

25 dedications just to clean things up because the road
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1 is not parallel to the right-of-way, and in some

2 places, there was a right-of-way and some places

3 there wasn't.  So they're basically dedicating the

4 right-of-way to the County in their minor

5 subdivision plan on the south side of site to the

6 right.  The other dedications will be done during

7 phase two and phase three.  It wasn't that they

8 wouldn't agree to do it now.  There's different

9 property owners involved.  So it just works with the

10 sequencing of the developer's phases.

11           So that's on the record, and it sets a

12 good path to what will happen in phase two and

13 three.  So we review it comprehensively and drilled

14 down what the action is tonight for phase one.

15 Other than things that was reviewed, as you'll see

16 from the letter, we went back to the January review.

17 As you can see, they have addressed the vast

18 majority of items.  Most of the things here are

19 written for the record.

20           Something that come up in the time

21 duration of these six months, the County using DOT

22 aide money is overlaying Passaic Avenue, including

23 this frontage, so the applicant has a bit challenge

24 on their hands.  If they disturb the road with the

25 utilities after it's paved, it means that you have
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1 to mill from curb to curb if the area is disturbed.

2 So they understand, it's in that letter, they

3 acknowledge that they have to get in and get out,

4 working with whatever the agreement with the County.

5 If they mill, they're going to have to overlay not

6 just trenches, but curb to curb for the footprint of

7 whatever area they disturb.  I think it's important

8 that be placed on the record as well.

9           So other than that, just before the

10 applicant closes, the applicant's attorney is

11 agreeing with everything I just said or if there is

12 any questions, that they be discussed now, but if

13 we're in agreement with all those things that we

14 agreed upon in the review committee meeting, I would

15 have no further comment.

16                MR. BALLOU:  We concur with

17 Mr. Cray's analysis.

18                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Do you have any

19 tenants lined up for the other building?

20                MR. BALLOU:  No yet.  The client is

21 working very hard, but not anything formal.

22                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  What is the start

23 date?

24                MR. BALLOU:  BJ's is opening is

25 August of 2015, so we're hoping to secure approvals
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1 and start in the next couple months on the

2 demolition.  It's a tight time for them.  We're very

3 anxious to move things forward as well.

4                MS. FERRARA:  Mr. Chairman, for the

5 record, the applicant has complied with many of the

6 green techniques, native landscaping, bike racks,

7 and they have fulfilled their obligation for shade

8 trees.

9                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Motion?

10                MS. FERRARA:  On a motion made by

11 Commissioner Choffo.  Second by Commissioner

12 Holloway.

13           Commissioner Arencibia.

14                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Yes, with

15 conditions.

16                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

17                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Aye.

18                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner

19 DiDomenico.

20                FREEHOLDER DiDOMENICO:  Aye.

21                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Gomez.

22                COMMISSIONER GOMEZ:  Aye.

23                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Holloway.

24                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Aye.

25                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.
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1                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

2                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

3                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

4                MS. FERRARA:  Chairman Cryan.

5                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

6                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

7                MR. BALLOU:  Thank you very much.

8                MS. FERRARA:  The next item on the

9 agenda are Applications to be Administratively

10 Approved.  Application 2014-018-SP; Applicant NJ

11 SMSA Limited Partnership; located at 680 Kennedy

12 Boulevard; Block 177, Lot 55; Bayonne.

13           On a motion made by Commissioner

14 DiDomenico.  Second by Commissioner Holloway.

15           Commissioner Arencibia.

16                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

17                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

18                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Aye.

19                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner

20 DiDomenico.

21                FREEHOLDER DiDOMENICO:  Aye.

22                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Gomez.

23                COMMISSIONER GOMEZ:  Aye.

24                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Holloway.

25                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Aye.
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1                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

2                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

3                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

4                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Yes.

5                MS. FERRARA:  Chairman Cryan.

6                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

7                MS. FERRARA:  The next item on the

8 agenda is Applications to be Exempt.  Application

9 2014-020-SP; Applicant, 74-75 Tonnelle, LLC; located

10 at 7400 Tonnelle Avenue; Block 254, Lots 75, 88, 90,

11 92, 144 and 146; North Bergen.  This application is

12 not on a County road.

13           On a motion made by Commissioner Mehta.

14 Second by Commissioner Choffo.

15           Commissioner Arencibia.

16                COMMSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

17                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

18                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Aye.

19                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner

20 DiDomenico.

21                FREEHOLDER DiDOMENICO:  Aye.

22                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Gomez.

23                COMMISSIONER GOMEZ:  Aye.

24                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Holloway.

25                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Aye.
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1                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

2                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

3                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

4                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

5                MS. FERRARA:  Chairman Cryan.

6                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

7                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

8 Next item is old business.  I have no old business.

9 The next item on the agenda is new business.  I have

10 no new business.

11                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  The only thing I

12 want to say to the Board is that as far as

13 attendance goes, if you miss four straight meetings,

14 there is a call for action.  It's something that we

15 have to do for four meetings.

16                COMMISSIONER GOMEZ:  Motion.

17                COMMISSIONER HOLLOWAY:  Second.

18                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  All in favor.

19               (Whereupon the proceeding is then

20 concluded at 7:43 p.m.)

21

22

23

24

25
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1              C E R T I F I C A T I O N

2

3           I, SHARI CATHEY, CCR, RPR, License No.

4 30XI00234700, and Notary Public of the State of New

5 Jersey, hereby certify that the proceedings herein

6 are from the notes taken by me of a Regular Meeting

7 of the Hudson County Planning Board, held on

8 Wednesday, June 18, 2014; and that this is a correct

9 transcript of the same.

10

11

12                          ___________________________

13                           SHARI CATHEY, CCR, RPR

                          A NOTARY PUBLIC of the

14                           State of New Jersey

                          I.D. No. 2283786

15                           Commission Expires 2/4/17

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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